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The 100 year anniversary of The Guild of S:t Ragnhild, Söderköping

In the spring 1918 nine gentlemen from Söderköping were invited by a shopkeeper mr Alric Lundberg to a gathering. His intention was to start a society, a guild.  They were interested, indeed. They formed a group for planning and forming the lines of aim, and after a short time the group decides to create an organization and name it the Guild of S:t Ragnhild.
In 1892, when Alric was 30 years old and Anna Lena was 26 years old, they got married in what was called a “real wedding in the Good Templars” as we can read in a local newspaper. Anna Lena gave birth to five children, two girls and three boys. One of the boys, Alric Halvar, emigrated to the same region as his uncles a few years earlier, namely Seattle in the north west of USA, whilst the others remained in Sweden. 
Alric Lundberg, the initiator of the foundation of the guild, became of course its first chairman.

The members of the first board, the shopkeeper Alric Lundberg, chairman of the board, the bank director Axel Ferb, doctor Axel Ossian Bergquist, the editor Carl Wallberg, secretary and the veterinary Karl Kronqvist with the deputy members the accountant Edward Peterson, the precentor (kantor) Albert Gustafsson, the accountant Oscar Johansson and the alderman Gustaf Nylund.
So - the Guild was founded. The word Guild leads ones thoughts to a club for amusement for men on the top of the society or for persons in one and the same profession or with the same background or interest. Today when reading protocols from that time you can recognize how amusement was essential but at the same time it is very clear that their aim was to take care of the history of Söderköping.
The Guild arranged concerts, soarées, theater performances, dinners, and so on, but almost always the main focus was directed towards the history or the culture of Söderköping.
The first statutes and regulations ran as follows:
The Aims of the Guild are 

· to spread knowledge of Söderköping and its history;
· to make people interested in the history of the city from a historical, topographical and cultural  point of view as far as concerns valuable memories, peculiarities and eccentricities;
· to work for the fulfillment of historical and artistical demands associated with re-moulding and changes of the city as well as its parks and gardens  and
· to try to attain ennobling entertainment by arranging discourses, lectures, concerts and so on.
Then it all starts. During the first few years they dreamed of a  “Guildhall” – a house and premises, rather closely built, with a small conference room, a room for ancient objects, and a café. The dream never came true – almost.
The Guild was given the right to use the so called Lagerberg Hill , the Hill of Korskullen and some of the houses on the hills. The summer-house became a musem and a café; the crofter’s holding became a home for the caretaker. The house of the tenant also became a museum later on.  The small and charming Fisher’s cottage and the magnificient windmill were transported to the hill during the twenties and then became property of the Guild. An old house, called Mangelgården, was moved to the Hill of the Guild where a hostel was started in 1952. Since the middle of the thirties the small cottage had been used for lodging hikers. 
Musical Festivals, theater performances and other arrangements were taking place at the Hill of the Guild. At a couple of occasions during the time from the middle of the1920ies till the middle of the 1960ies the celebration of the National day, the so called Day of the Swedish Flag, took place here. This arrangement was organized by the Guild during those 40 years. Usually the parade thread from the elementary school (Folkskola) called Vintervadsskolan to the Hotel Söderköpings Brunn.

 The parade included students and teachers from the school, the Sweden Women’s Army Auxiliary Corps, the Scout Association, the fire-brigade and so on. There was music and singing, flags were given away and money was collected for the Children’s country holiday colony of Söderköping. There were also speaches, often delivered by the priests of the parishes in the city and from parishes in the vicinity.  
The activities as far as the hiker’s hostel concerns was taken care of by the Guild  together with the STF (The Swedish Touring Organization). Today the community of Söderköping has taken over all the rights to and the ownership of the buildings on the Hill Korskullen, even if they are leasing out some of them. Until last year the Guild had the right to dispose of the buildings despite of the fact that they had not been their owners for several years. 
The Guild was for some years the owner of the Råsten cottage at the frontline between Söderköping and Tåby. The Guild also owned the Little Magazine by the Göta Canal. The operating costs and above all the repairing costs for such ancient and reverend buildings became too high and therefore Råsten was sold after a few years and a couple of years ago also the Little Magazie was sold.

The same circumstances were actually the matter for the Hill Korskullen. But in this case there was an agreement between the community and the Guild of “exchanging” the buildings against a costfree longtime-hiring-agreement  of the old school house situated near the Church of S:t Laurentii. In 1978 the Guild took over the house where the Historical Museum of the City is today located.
During most of the years before 1990 the number of gatherings within the Guild were limited to twice a year. One meeting took place by the end of the spring or at the beginning of the summer and the other during the fall. One of them was the general meeting.

After 1990 – i.e. in modern time – the activity has been increased with relatively regularly gatherings with for example discourses , lectures, presentations of old and new pictures as well as studies. So nowadays almost every week there is som kind of program activity taking place in the old school house run by the Guild.
From the middle of the 1930ies there were trips and excursions  to historical places in the region or its vicinity. Every such trip was finished with a dinner at the Main City Hotel or at Söderköpings Brunn during the responsibility of the cupbearer. Often the entertainment consisted of singing lead by the song leader and a men’s choir called the Guild Choir.
The Number of the Members in the association increased rather quickly during the 1920ies. But it was not only a club for those who lived in the city of Söderköping. During some years the Guild had local representatives, representatives for different parishes, whose duty was to find and propose suitable members from their parish. That implies that the Guild regarded themselves actually being functioning as a society for preserving regional history and folk life of Söderköping but also of  parts of the Vikbolandet, Valdemarsvik and Skärkind.
That can be seen when you read the year books of the Guild which have been published since 1922. The historical articles are not only telling about what happened in the city or general history but also about what has happened in a geographically much bigger area than the city itself.
So the first year book was published in 1922 an has so been every year since, sometimes thinner and sometimes thicker. Now in the year of 2018 the publishing look is quite different from what is normal, a year book in the form of a jubilee publication, in another format and with another binding and with a very clear thematic content – S:t Ragnhilds Gille 100 years.
Of course, the new statutes are maybe somewhat too demanding and comprehensive for an idealistically working organization where the interest and the competence of the members of the board is vital for what the organization can be expected to fulfill and to take an active part in. However, the organizations are also very dependent on in what extent leading agencies in  the community will help enable organizations like the Guild to perform their activities.
The Guild are now hoping that those people in Söderköping, in the vicinity and visitors from near and far with an interest in Swedish history and especially in local history will come to visit the historical museum in Söderköping, which will be open during the period June – August. Welcome to the activities of the Guild.
The Guild has about 650 members who through their membership are supporting and making possible all the different activities. The Guild is nothing worth without its members.

